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DATES: To ensure consideration,
comments regarding this proposed
information collection must be received
on or before March 28, 2022.

ADDRESSES: Direct all written comments
to Eric M. Geddis, Program Manager,
Department of Commerce at egeddis@
doc.gov, or to PRAcomments@doc.gov.
Please reference OMB Control Number
0690—-0033 in the subject line of your
comments. Do not submit Confidential
Business Information or otherwise
sensitive or protected information. All
comments received are part of the
public record.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:
Requests for additional information or
copies of the information collection
instrument and instructions should be
directed to Eric M. Geddis, Department
of Commerce, 1401 Constitution Ave.
NW, Washington, DC 20230, (202) 482—
8125, or egeddis@doc.gov.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:
1. Abstract

The purpose of this collection is to
gather information to mitigate variances
in foreign access management program
implementation and registration
information requirements needed to
reach risk-based determinations of
physical and logical access by foreign
national visitors and guests to
Commerce facilities and resources. Due
to the increasing diversity of foreign
national participation in departmental
programs, considerable efforts have
been made to baseline requirements as
a means to define uniform program
standards as well as to expand current
guidance beyond foreign visitor control
to manage emerging risks associated
with physical and logical access to the
Department’ s facilities and resources.

II. Method of Collection

This information is collected in both
paper form and electronically.

III. Data

OMB Control Number: 0690-0033.

Form Number(s): 207-12-1.

Type of Review: Regular submission.
Extension of a currently approved
collection.

Affected Public: Individuals or
households.

Estimated Number of Respondents:
12,000.

Estimated Time per Response: 15
minutes.

Estimated Total Annual Burden
Hours: 3,000.

Estimated Total Annual Cost to
Public: $0.

IV. Request for Comments

We are soliciting public comments to
permit the Agency to: (a) Evaluate
whether the proposed information
collection is necessary for the proper
functions of the Agency, including
whether the information will have
practical utility; (b) Evaluate the
accuracy of our estimate of the time and
cost burden for this proposed collection,
including the validity of the
methodology and assumptions used; (c)
Evaluate ways to enhance the quality,
utility, and clarity of the information to
be collected; and (d) Minimize the
reporting burden on those who are to
respond, including the use of automated
collection techniques or other forms of
information technology.

Comments that you submit in
response to this notice are a matter of
public record. We will include or
summarize each comment in our request
to OMB to approve this information
collection. Before including your
address, phone number, email address,
or other personal identifying
information in your comment, you
should be aware that your entire
comment—including your personal
identifying information—may be made
publicly available at any time. While
you may ask us in your comment to
withhold your personal identifying
information from public review, we
cannot guarantee that we will be able to
do so.

Sheleen Dumas,

Department PRA Clearance Officer, Office of
the Chief Information Officer, Commerce
Department.

[FR Doc. 2022-01428 Filed 1-24-22; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 3510-17-P

DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE

Foreign-Trade Zones Board
[B-01-2022]

Foreign-Trade Zone (FTZ) 38—
Spartanburg County, South Carolina;
Notification of Proposed Production
Activity, BMW Manufacturing
Company, LLC (Passenger Motor
Vehicles), Spartanburg, South Carolina

BMW Manufacturing Company, LLC
submitted a notification of proposed
production activity to the FTZ Board
(the Board) for its facility in
Spartanburg, South Carolina within
Subzone 38A. The notification
conforming to the requirements of the
Board’s regulations (15 CFR 400.22) was
received on January 13, 2022.

Pursuant to 15 CFR 400.14(b), FTZ
production activity would be limited to

the specific foreign-status component
described in the submitted notification
(summarized below) and subsequently
authorized by the Board. The benefits
that may stem from conducting
production activity under FTZ
procedures are explained in the
background section of the Board’s
website—accessible via www.trade.gov/
ftz. The proposed component would be
added to the production authority that
the Board previously approved for the
operation, as reflected on the Board’s
website.

The proposed foreign-status
component is plastic terminal battery
caps (duty-free). The request indicates
that the component is subject to duties
under section 301 of the Trade Act of
1974 (section 301), depending on the
country of origin. The applicable
Section 301 decisions require subject
merchandise to be admitted to FTZs in
privileged foreign status (19 CFR
146.41).

Public comment is invited from
interested parties. Submissions shall be
addressed to the Board’s Executive
Secretary and sent to: ftz@trade.gov. The
closing period for their receipt is March
7,2022.

A copy of the notification will be
available for public inspection in the
“Online FTZ Information System”
section of the Board’s website.

For further information, contact
Christopher Wedderburn at
Chris.Wedderburn@trade.gov.

Dated: January 20, 2022.
Andrew McGilvray,
Executive Secretary.
[FR Doc. 2022-01394 Filed 1-24-22; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 3510-DS-P

DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE
Bureau of Industry and Security

In the Matter of: Khaldoun Hejazi, 1112
West Howe Street, Boise, ID 83706
Order Denying Export Privileges

On March 3, 2020, in the U.S. District
Court for the District of Idaho, Khaldoun
Hejazi (‘““Hejazi”’) was convicted of
violating Section 38 of the Arms Export
Control Act (22 U.S.C. 2778) (“AECA”).
Specifically, Hejazi was convicted of
knowingly and willfully conspiring to
export, and causing to be exported,
firearms from the United States, which
were designated as defense articles on
the United States Munitions List,
without having first obtained the
required licenses or written approval
from the U.S. Department of State. As a
result of his conviction, the Court
sentenced Hejazi to (1) 30 months in
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prison, (2) three years of supervised
released, (3) a $30,000 criminal fine,
and (4) a $100 court assessment.

Pursuant to Section 1760(e) of the
Export Control Reform Act (“ECRA”),
the export privileges of any person who
has been convicted of certain offenses,
including, but not limited to, Section 38
of the AECA, may be denied for a period
of up to ten (10) years from the date of
his/her conviction. See 50 U.S.C.
4819(e). In addition, any Bureau of
Industry and Security (“BIS”) licenses
or other authorizations issued under
ECRA, in which the person had an
interest at the time of the conviction,
may be revoked. Id.

BIS received notice of Hejazi’s
conviction for violating Section 38 of
the AECA. BIS provided notice and
opportunity for Hejazi to make a written
submission to BIS, as provided in
Section 766.25 of the Export
Administration Regulations (“EAR” or
the “Regulations”). 15 CFR 766.25.1
While Hejazi contacted BIS indicating
that he may submit a response, to date,
BIS has not received a written
submission from Hejazi.

Based upon my review of the record
and consultations with BIS’s Office of
Exporter Services, including its
Director, and the facts available to BIS,
I have decided to deny Hejazi’s export
privileges under the Regulations for a
period of five years from the date of
Hejazi’s conviction. The Office of
Exporter Services has also decided to
revoke any BIS-issued licenses in which
Hejazi had an interest at the time of his
conviction.?

Accordingly, it is hereby ordered:

First, from the date of this Order until
March 3, 2025, Khaldoun Hejazi, with a
last known address of 1112 West Howe
Street, Boise, ID 83706, and when acting
for or on his behalf, his successors,
assigns, employees, agents or
representatives (“‘the Denied Person”’),
may not directly or indirectly
participate in any way in any
transaction involving any commodity,
software or technology (hereinafter
collectively referred to as “‘item”)
exported or to be exported from the
United States that is subject to the
Regulations, including, but not limited
to:

A. Applying for, obtaining, or using
any license, license exception, or export
control document;

1The Regulations are currently codified in the
Code of Federal Regulations at 15 CFR parts 730—
774 (2021).

2 The Director, Office of Export Enforcement, is
now the authorizing official for issuance of denial
orders, pursuant to recent amendments to the
Regulations (85 FR 73411, November 18, 2020).

B. Carrying on negotiations
concerning, or ordering, buying,
receiving, using, selling, delivering,
storing, disposing of, forwarding,
transporting, financing, or otherwise
servicing in any way, any transaction
involving any item exported or to be
exported from the United States that is
subject to the Regulations, or engaging
in any other activity subject to the
Regulations; or

C. Benefitting in any way from any
transaction involving any item exported
or to be exported from the United States
that is subject to the Regulations, or
from any other activity subject to the
Regulations.

Second, no person may, directly or
indirectly, do any of the following:

A. Export, reexport, or transfer (in-
country) to or on behalf of the Denied
Person any item subject to the
Regulations;

B. Take any action that facilitates the
acquisition or attempted acquisition by
the Denied Person of the ownership,
possession, or control of any item
subject to the Regulations that has been
or will be exported from the United
States, including financing or other
support activities related to a
transaction whereby the Denied Person
acquires or attempts to acquire such
ownership, possession or control;

C. Take any action to acquire from or
to facilitate the acquisition or attempted
acquisition from the Denied Person of
any item subject to the Regulations that
has been exported from the United
States;

D. Obtain from the Denied Person in
the United States any item subject to the
Regulations with knowledge or reason
to know that the item will be, or is
intended to be, exported from the
United States; or

E. Engage in any transaction to service
any item subject to the Regulations that
has been or will be exported from the
United States and which is owned,
possessed or controlled by the Denied
Person, or service any item, of whatever
origin, that is owned, possessed or
controlled by the Denied Person if such
service involves the use of any item
subject to the Regulations that has been
or will be exported from the United
States. For purposes of this paragraph,
servicing means installation,
maintenance, repair, modification or
testing.

Third, pursuant to section 1760(e) of
ECRA (50 U.S.C. 4819(e)) and sections
766.23 and 766.25 of the Regulations,
any other person, firm, corporation, or
business organization related to Hejazi
by ownership, control, position of
responsibility, affiliation, or other
connection in the conduct of trade or

business may also be made subject to
the provisions of this Order in order to
prevent evasion of this Order.

Fourth, in accordance with part 756 of
the Regulations, Hejazi may file an
appeal of this Order with the Under
Secretary of Commerce for Industry and
Security. The appeal must be filed
within 45 days from the date of this
Order and must comply with the
provisions of part 756 of the
Regulations.

Fifth, a copy of this Order shall be
delivered to Hejazi and shall be
published in the Federal Register.

Sixth, this Order is effective
immediately and shall remain in effect
until March 3, 2025.

John Sonderman,

Director, Office of Export Enforcement.
[FR Doc. 2022-01427 Filed 1-24-22; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 3510-DT-P

DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE

International Trade Administration
[A-122-857]

Certain Softwood Lumber Products
From Canada: Final Results of
Antidumping Duty Administrative
Review; 2019; Correction

AGENCY: Enforcement and Compliance,
International Trade Administration,
Department of Commerce.

ACTION: Notice; correction.

SUMMARY: The Department of Commerce
(Commerce) published notice in the
Federal Register on December 2, 2021
in which Commerce announced the
final results of the 2019 administrative
reviews of the antidumping duty (AD)
order on softwood lumber from Canada.
This notice incorrectly excluded the
name Fraserview Remanufacturing Inc.,
d.b.a. Fraserview Cedar Products.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: ]eff
Pedersen, AD/CVD Operations, Office
IV, Enforcement and Compliance,
International Trade Administration,
U.S. Department of Commerce, 1401
Constitution Avenue NW, Washington,
DC 20230; telephone: (202) 482—2769.
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:

Correction

In the Federal Register of December 2,
2021, in FR Doc 2021-26149, on page
68473, in the third column, we will
correct the name of the Exporter/
Producer “5. 752615 B.C Ltd” by adding
the name Fraserview Remanufacturing
Inc., d.b.a. Fraserview Cedar Products to
this name, such that it reads ““5. 752615
B.C Ltd; Fraserview Remanufacturing
Inc., d.b.a. Fraserview Cedar Products.”
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